City of Westminster

Title:

Meeting Date:
Time:

Venue:

Members:

Public Document Pack

Committee Agenda

Planning Applications Sub-Committee (2)

Tuesday 31st October, 2017

6.30 pm

Room 3.1, 3rd Floor, 5 Strand, London, WC2 5HR

Councillors:

Melvyn Caplan (Chairman)
Ruth Bush

Paul Church

Gotz Mohindra

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda

Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the
ground floor reception from 6.00pm. If you have a disability
and require any special assistance please contact the
Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the
meeting.

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require
any further information, please contact the Committee
Officer, Tristan Fieldsend, Committee and Governance
Officer.

Tel: 020 7641 2341; email: tfieldsend@westminster.gov.uk
Corporate Website: www.westminster.qov.uk



http://www.westminster.gov.uk/

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)

1. MEMBERSHIP

To note any changes to the membership.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations by members and officers of the existence
and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in matters on
this agenda.

3. MINUTES

To sign the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record of
proceedings.

4, PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Applications for decision

Schedule of Applications

1. THE LODGE, LEICESTER SQUARE, LONDON, WC2H (Pages 3 - 22)

7DE
2. 101 EASTBOURNE MEWS, LONDON, W2 6LQ (Pages 23 - 42)
3. 103 EASTBOURNE MEWS, LONDON, W2 6LQ (Pages 43 - 62)
4. FLAT 24, GARRICK HOUSE, 63 - 66 ST MARTIN'S (Pages 63 - 82)
LANE, LONDON, WC2N 4JS
5. 1 BALFOUR PLACE, LONDON, W1K 2AR (Pages 83 - 98)

Charlie Parker
Chief Executive
23 October 2017



Agenda Annex

PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB COMMITTEE - 31st October 2017
PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

Item No | References Site Proposal Applicant
Address
2. RN(s) : The Lodge | Demolition of existing two-storey building on the
17/04586/COFUL | Leicester south side of Leicester Square and erection of new Westminster City
Square two-storey structure with terrace above to provide Council
London replacement ticket office (Class Al) and cafe (Class
WC2H 7DE | A3).
St James's
Recommendation
1. Grant conditional permission under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General Regulations
1992.
2. That Sub-Committee authorises the making of a draft order pursuant to s247 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 for the stopping up of parts of the public highway to enable this development to take place.
3. That officers be authorised to take all necessary procedural steps in conjunction with the making of the order
and to make the order as proposed if there are no unresolved objections to the draft order. The applicant will be
required to cover all costs of the Council in progressing the stopping up order.
Item No | References Site Address | Proposal Applicant
3. RN(s) : 101 Excavation to create single storey basement level,
17/06664/FULL | Eastbourne erection of three roof lights in the rear roof slope and | Mrs Lesley Chen
Mews alterations to the rear elevation.
London
W2 6LQ
Hyde Park
Recommendation
Grant conditional permission.
Item No | References Site Address | Proposal Applicant
4. RN(s) : 103 Demolition of existing mews building behind retained
17/03716/FULL | Eastbourne front facade and party walls and reconstruction of Caroline Beecham
Mews mews building over ground, first and second floor. and John Lydon
London
W2 6LQ
Hyde Park
Recommendation
Grant conditional permission.
Item No | References Site Address | Proposal Applicant
5. RN(s) : Flat 24 Erection of a roof extension to create a glazed
17/04855/FULL | Garrick sunroom with associated roof terrace. Mr Piers Smerin
House
63 - 66 St
Martin's Lane
St James's London
WC2N 4JS
Recommendation
Refuse planning permission — design and amenity (overlooking/loss of privacy).
Item No | References Site Address | Proposal Applicant
6. RN(s) : 1 Balfour External ;beéagcéugo existing single dwelling house
Place (Class C3) i ingroof level alterations, new half- Mr Peter Cruddas

dcagem091231




CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS SUB COMMITTEE - 31st October 2017
PROVISIONAL SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

17/06598/FULL | London height plant/access enclosures, , adjustment of

W1K 2AR existing means of escape, relocation of chimney,
installation of new and replacement windows and
doors to southern (front) and eastern (side)
elevations, lowering of level of existing patio at
ground floor level on eastern side of property, repair
and refurbishment of balustrade railings at street
level, replacement of existing metal staircases linking
basement to street level and creation of roof terrace
with railings and screen.

West End

Recommendation
Grant conditional permission

Page 2

dcagem091231




Agenda ltem 1

Item No.
2

CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING Date Classification
ég‘:/lLl\l/lcl:ﬁTTElgNS SUB 31 October 2017 For General Release
Report of Ward(s) involved
Director of Planning St James's
Subject of Report The Lodge , Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7DE
Proposal Demolition of existing two-storey building on the south side of Leicester

Square and erection of new two-storey structure with terrace above to
provide replacement ticket office (Class Al) and cafe (Class A3).

Agent Tim Murray

On behalf of Mr Roger Austin

Registered Number 17/04586/COFUL Date amended/

Date Application 24 May 2017 completed 13 July 2017
Received

Historic Building Grade | Unlisted

Conservation Area Leicester Square

1. RECOMMENDATION

1. Grant conditional permission under Regulation 3 of the Town and Country Planning General
Regulations 1992.

2. That Sub-Committee authorises the making of a draft order pursuant to s247 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 for the stopping up of parts of the public highway to enable this
development to take place.

3. That officers be authorised to take all necessary procedural steps in conjunction with the making of
the order and to make the order as proposed if there are no unresolved objections to the draft order.
The applicant will be required to cover all costs of the Council in progressing the stopping up order.

2. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing ticket office building on the south side of
Leicester Square and the erection of a new two-storey structure to provide a replacement ticket office
(Class Al) at ground floor level and a cafe (Class A3) at first floor level with terrace above.

The key issues for consideration are:
* The impact of the proposals on the character and appearance of the Leicester Square Conservation

Area; and
* The land use and highways implications of the proposal.

Page 3




Item No.

The proposals are considered to comply with the Council's policies in relation to design, conservation
landuse and highways as set out in Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies (City Plan) and the
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and the application is accordingly recommended for approval.

Page 4




Item No.

3. LOCATION PLAN

-

&

==
=

S
m

aujeal

Ry

g
I
ik

& CROSS RC
"
||

CHA

]
¥e
X

18
52

18.4m

g TR
3 ral by,

55 ROA

9 Cycle Hire Station ﬂa\
Ly

This production includes mapping data
licensed from Ordnance Survey with the
permission if the controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright and /or
database rights 2013.

All rights reserved License Number LA
100019597

Page 5



4.

PHOTOGRAPHS

Item No.

‘Illn llll'

l.lﬁﬁﬁm’i |

\

-

SRR

Page 6




6.1

6.2

Item No.

CONSULTATIONS

WESTMINSTER SOCIETY
No objection. Query over what happens to existing ticket facility during construction.

SOHO SOCIETY
No objection.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING
Servicing hours and waste storage conditions required. Stopping up of the public highway
will be required.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
No objection, subject to conditions. As no extraction details are provided, a condition is
recommended requiring no primary cooking on site.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

No. Consulted: 31
Total No. of replies: O

PRESS ADVERTISEMENT / SITE NOTICE: Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Application Site
The Lodge is located in a prominent location to the south side of Leicester Square. It falls
within the West End Stress Area, the Core Central Activities Zone (CAZ) and lies within
the Leicester Square Conservation Area.

Recent Relevant History

There is no recent relevant planning history.

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing lodge and the erection of a
new two-storey structure to provide a replacement ticket office (Class Al) at ground floor
level and a cafe (Class A3) at first floor level with terrace above.

There is an existing electricity substation beneath the lodge which will remain unchanged.
The proposed new building includes access and the ventilation requirements to serve to
substation.

Existing GIA Proposed GIA +/-
(sqm) (sqm)
Ticket Office (Class A1) | 75.1 58 -17.1

Page 7



7.

7.1

7.2

Item No.

Café (Class A3) 0 63.7 63.7

Total 75.1 121.7 46.6

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
Land Use

The ground floor and first floor will be operated as two distinct planning units, that being for
the retail sale of tickets (Class Al) at ground floor, and as a café (Class A3) at first floor.
Proposals include a dedicated staff entrance to the ticket office on the west side of the
building, with a secondary entrance providing access to the first floor space and terrace
located on the east elevation.

In land use terms, the re-provision of the ticket office facility is welcomed. Policy S6 and
S24 of the City Plan consider entertainment activities within the Central Activities Zone
and West End Stress Area. TACE 8 of the UDP considers the introduction of new café
(Class A3) accommodation under 150 sq m in the CAZ and West End Stress Area. These
policies require that new entertainment uses must be appropriate in type, size, scale and
the relationship to existing entertainment uses. These policies also detail that new
entertainment uses should not adversely impact residential amenity, health and safety,
local environmental quality or the character and function of the area.

Given the limited size of the proposed café (class A3) at 63sq, it is not considered that it
will compromise environmental quality or the character and function of the area.
Conditions are recommended requiring no primary cooking on the site, given the
proposals do not include extraction details for the café. A condition is also
recommended restricting the hours of opening to between 7am and midnight daily.

Townscape and Design

The existing building on the site dates from the early 1990s and is a generally
undistinguished design. There are no townscape or design concerns about the demolition
of the existing structure.

The replacement structure has a slightly larger footprint, with an increase in height and
bulk compared to existing. However, given the open nature of the Square and the distance
from adjoining buildings, it is considered that a building of this size could be
accommodated on this site without undue impact on the visual balance of the Square and
surrounding buildings.

The proposed building has a more simplified form and integrated design than existing and
it sits very much as a free-standing “object” within the wider setting of the Square. It makes
no real design reference to the surrounding buildings, but remains within the spirit of the
newly designed Leicester Square gardens with their free-flowing organic forms and
contemporary street furniture. The structure is contained within a wrap-around form of
modelled bronze columns, which vary in width and depth to provide openings for the
various uses behind. The design cleverly integrates the various uses behind the facade
while maintaining a consistent and integrated expression to the exterior.

Page 8



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

Item No.

The proposals are therefore considered acceptable in design terms compliant with DES5
and DES9 of the UDP, subject to conditions including the submission of samples of all
facing materials.

Residential Amenity

Policies S29 of the City Plan and ENV13 of the UDP seek to protect residential amenity in
terms of light, privacy, sense of enclosure, noise and disturbance and encourage
development which enhances the residential environment of surrounding properties.

Given its Leicester Square location, the nearest residential properties are located on Irving
Street, and it is considered that the new building will materially impact upon the amenity of
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy, daylight or sense of enclosure or noise
and disturbance.

Plant is proposed at roof level and an acoustic report has been submitted in support of the
application which has been assessed by Environmental Health who has raised no
objection subject to standard conditions.

As such, the proposals are considered acceptable in amenity terms, in accordance with
Policies S29 of the City Plan and ENV13 of the UDP.

Transportation/Parking

Servicing will be carried out on street within the limited times vehicles are allowed into this
part of Leicester Square. Hours of servicing are recommended to be secured by
condition to between 6am and 10am daily.

The proposed new structure will extend beyond the building line of the existing structure at
ground level. This area of public highway will need to be stopped up pursuant to s247 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to allow the proposed development to be
implemented. The Highways Planning Manager raises no objection to this element of the
scheme.

Economic Considerations

This development does not generate a Mayor CIL or WCC CIL payment.

Access

The proposed scheme will provide level access to the ticket booth and includes a four
person lift providing level access to the first floor where an accessible WC is provided.

Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations
Trees

The new structure will utilise the existing reinforced concrete foundations. There are two
trees on the south side of Leicester Square adjacent to the existing ticket booth that are in

Page 9



Item No.

2

tree pits owing to a UKPN substation below ground and their root capacity is accordingly
limited by these tree pits.

Although there will be an increase in footprint given the design, no excavation will be
required and there will be no incursion into any root protection areas. Some limited
pruning of the tree canopies may be required given the increased height of the proposed
building. A tree protection method statement is recommended to be secured by condition
in order to ensure that the trees are protected during construction.

The applicant has confirmed that the existing adjacent hard landscaping and level
alignment will not be affected by the proposal. However, the existing intake vents to the
north and south are proposed to be reconfigured and incorporated within a new building
plinth, in order to improve the visual integration with the proposed building and existing
landscaping scheme. A condition is recommended to secure further details in this regard.
7.8 London Plan
This application raises no strategic issues.
7.9 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

The City Plan and UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are
considered to be consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

7.10 Planning Obligations
Planning obligations are not relevant in the determination of this application.
7.11 Environmental Impact Assessment
The proposals are of an insufficient scale to require an environmental impact assessment.
7.12 Other Issues
None.
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Application form
Response from Westminster Society, dated 3 August 2017
Response from Environmental Health, dated 11 August 2017

Letter from Soho Society, dated 10 August 2017
Response from Highways Planning, dated 22 August 2017

arwnhpE

(Please note: All the application drawings and other relevant documents and Background Papers
are available to view on the Council’'s website)

Page 10



Item No.

2

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT THE PRESENTING

OFFICER: JULIA ASGHAR BY EMAIL AT jasghar@westminster.gov.uk.

Page 11




9. KEY DRAWINGS

Item No.

7731, GRoune LN

SLALE 150 A3

1 sm

& T on L mooamn

s LEICESTER SQUARE TICKET OFICE
ez EXISTIMG GROUND PLAN
s PLANMING

B R

=S o
cesun | cwlsas [ eafisesss | =efia

Existing Ground Floor

/00 ARSTALOOR PN

U SCALE 1500 43

im 2

bl O LA s

manc e LEICESTER SGUARE TICKET OFFICE
ez EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN
mazus PLANNING

[ P o

o R
s O T 5 B Y T

Proposed First Floor

Page 12




Item No.

Ao
P drye

e L
B e L e S

T copoooooooo
OO0000 0000

HEENE

0000000000 0000

E%Eﬁ&mmﬁﬁﬁ

(Em SOUTH ELEVATION

\‘_—/ SZALE 182 A0

& e rom L w mmu

wawe wu LECESTER SQUARE TICKET OFFICE
o v EXISTING SOUTH ELEVATION
wn PLANNING

w‘» | S o S
el | wwlwr | weiwesm | we|ie

Existing South Elevation
Mo
A‘ veae A s
T
Dt Vom T SN vert Yom e R ek ofh.
_O_
Z K
.
meecmu LEICESTER SQUARE TICKET BOOTH
/5_1‘\ EXISTING CROSS SECTION sy EXISTING CROSS SECTION
\ /} SIALE 150 A% e BLANMING
" am am Em

Existing Cross Section

Page 13




Item No.

-
BULEINS

I(KEH\ GROUND PLAN

EE
Fme et e

et o Al s

OO

MANAOER JH-IZEI

ETORAGE

U SCALE 1503 A3

1 oo

GALES AREA
E a

85,80

LS

& s o LG

T S Wt o et ek o

u LEICESTER SOUARE TICKET OFFICE
¢ GROUMD FL

Proposed Ground Floor

/—C 1\ FIRST FLOOR PLAN

e

i m

(=
Mo deceea e

Tt b b o Al b s

Dt sl o T S et o e ek ok

=

P ——
/ K
DEAB_ED WC [\

/

-

Mao=0on

155 P LA

sonc e LEICESTER SQUARE TICKET OFFICE
e FIRST FLOGH BLAN

Proposed First Floor

Page 14




Item No.

Homs
Fiome fecte e

T sy Alighs et

A i T B e R e o

|/E1\ ROOF PLAN
\_/ SCALE 150 A3 _/‘i

A lasue o PLAANG o ammany

¢ ROOF PLAN | TERAACE LEVEL

et

MO=0M eawcm LEICESTER SQUARE TICKET OFFICE

= PLAHMING
[

Proposed Roof Terrace

Progosed Erard
lzatsn

o p==—

SALT slgrage whhh—T
Az

Homs
Hiome fecye e

Tt e B o, AL i
Dt sl s sradog: e, o e hesneoes o

SOLT shgnage wirk

v SCALE 1503 A3

& I Fon LA o 3zoany

(/— \ m D H D m meac e LEICESTER SQUARE TICKET OFFICE
017, SOUTH ELEvATION

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
BLAHMING

| T
| wulisopas | swmno

Proposed South Elevation

Page 15




Item No.

Proposed North Elevation Visual

Proposed South Elevation Visual

Page 16



Item No.

2
DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: The Lodge , Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7DE
Proposal: Demolition of existing two-storey building on the south side of Leicester Square and

erection of new two-storey structure with terrace above to provide replacement ticket
office (Class Al) and cafe (Class A3).

Plan Nos: 110 Rev. A; 120 Rev. A; 121 Rev. A; 130 Rev. A; 140 Rev. A; 141 Rev. A; 142 Rev.

A; 143 Rev. A; 144 Rev. A; 145 Rev. A; 147 Rev. A; 122 Rev. A; 123 Rev. A; 131 Rev.
A; 150 Rev. A; 151 Rev. A; 152 Rev. A; 153 Rev. A; 210 Rev. A; 220 Rev. A; 221 Rev.
A; 222 Rev. A; 230 Rev. A; 231 Rev. A; 240 Rev. A; 241 Rev. A; 242 Rev. A; 243 Rev.
A; 244 Rev. A; 245 Rev. A; 247 Rev. A, Plant Noise Assessment dated 11 July 2017,
prepared by Bickerdike Allen Partners.

Case Officer: Sebastian Knox Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 4208

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s) or Reason(s) for Refusal:

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Except for piling, excavation and demolition work, you must carry out any building work which can
be heard at the boundary of the site only:

o] between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;
0 between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturday; and
0 not at all on Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

You must carry out piling, excavation and demolition work only:
0 between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday; and
0 not at all on Saturdays, Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take place outside these hours unless otherwise agreed through a Control of
Pollution Act 1974 section 61 prior consent in special circumstances (for example, to meet police
traffic restrictions, in an emergency or in the interests of public safety). (C11AB)

Reason: : .

To protect the environment of neighbouring occupiers. This is as set out in S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 of our ‘Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

You must apply to us for approval of samples of the facing materials you will use, including
glazing, and elevations and roof plans annotated to show where the materials are to be located.

Page 17



Item No.

2

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what you
have sent us. You must then carry out the work using the approved materials. (C26BC)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Leicester Square Conservation Area. This is as set
out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES
6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26BE)

You must not put structures such as canopies, umbrellas, fences, loggias, trellises or satellite or
radio antennae on the roof terrace. (C26NA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Leicester Square Conservation Area. This is as set
out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES
6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26BE)

Before anyone moves into the property, you must provide the separate stores for waste and
materials for recycling shown on drawing number 220 Rev. A. You must clearly mark them and
make them available at all times to everyone using the Class Al units. (C14FB)

Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste and materials for recycling as
set out in S44 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 12 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14CC)

Servicing of the Class Al and Class A3 units must take place between 06:00 and 10:00 daily.
Servicing includes loading and unloading goods from vehicles and putting rubbish outside the
building. (C23DA)

Reason:

To avoid blocking the surrounding streets and to protect the environment of people in
neighbouring properties as set out in  S42 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and
STRA 25, TRANS 20 and TRANS 21 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R23AC)

You must hang all doors or gates so that they do not open over or across the road or pavement.
(C24AA)

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in S41 of Westminster's
City Plan (November 2016) and TRANS 2 and TRANS 3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R24AC)

Page 18



Item No.

(1) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will not
be intermittent, the 'A" weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 5 dB below the minimum external background noise, at a
point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, unless
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background level
should be expressed in terms of the lowest LA90, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shall be
representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB below the minimum external background noise, at a
point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, unless
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background level
should be expressed in terms of the lowest LA90, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shall be
representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City Council
for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a further noise
report confirming previous details and subsequent measurement data of the installed plant,
including a proposed fixed noise level for approval by the City Council. Your submission of a
noise report must include:

(a) A schedule of all plant and equipment that formed part of this application;

(b) Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissions in octave or third octave detail;

(d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor location and the most affected window
of it;

(e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features that
may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

(H Measurements of existing LA90, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate. This
acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures;

(g) The lowest existing L A90, 15 mins measurement recorded under (f) above;

(h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

(i) The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out in
ENV 6 (1), (6) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is protected,
including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in S32 of Westminster's
City Plan (November 2016), by contributing to reducing excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3)

Page 19



10

11

12

13

Item No.

2

is included so that applicants may ask subsequently for a fixed maximum noise level to be
approved in case ambient noise levels reduce at any time after implementation of the planning
permission.

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of greater
than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.26 m/s (1.75) 8 hour night-time as defined by BS 6472
(2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason:

As set out in ENV6 (2) and (6) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007,
to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise or
vibration.

You must not cook raw or fresh food on the premises. (CO5DA)

Reason:

We do not have enough information to decide whether it would be possible to provide extractor
equipment that would deal properly with cooking smells and look suitable. This is as set out in
S24, S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 5 and ENV 6 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (RO5DC)

Customers shall not be permitted within the cafe (Class A3) premises before 07:00 or after
00:00 each day. (C12AD)

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties as set out in S24, S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6, ENV 7 and TACES of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R12AC)

Pre Commencement Condition. You must apply to us for approval of a method statement
explaining the measures you will take to protect the trees on and close to the site. You must not
start any demolition, site clearance or building work, and you must not take any equipment,
machinery or materials for the development onto the site, until we have approved what you have
sent us. You must then carry out the work according to the approved details.

Reason:

To make sure that the trees on the site are adequately protected during building works. This is
as set out in S38 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 (A), ENV 16 and ENV
17 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R31AC)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings of the new building plinth incorporating the
reconfigured existing intake vents, including how this will relate to the surrounding landscaping.
You must not start work on the relevant part of the development until we have approved what you
have sent us.

Page 20



Item No.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Leicester Square Conservation Area. This is as set
out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES
6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26BE)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016), Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning
briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service,
in order to ensure that applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which
is likely to be considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered
to the applicant at the validation stage.

Prior to the commencement of development, the highway will need to be stopped up under s247
of Planning Act. If works commence prior to the finalisation of the stopping up process, an
obstruction of the highway is still occurring.

Conditions 8 and 9 control noise from the approved machinery. It is very important that you meet
the conditions and we may take legal action if you do not. You should make sure that the
machinery is properly maintained and serviced regularly. (I82AA)

You are advised to permanently mark the plant/ machinery hereby approved with the details of
this permission (date of grant, registered number). This will assist in future monitoring of the
equipment by the City Council if and when complaints are received.

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Item No.
3
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING Date Classification
APPLICATIONS SUB 31st October 2017 For General Release
COMMITTEE
Report of Ward(s) involved
Director of Planning Hyde Park
Subject of Report 101 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ,
Proposal Excavation to create single storey basement level, erection of three roof
lights in the rear roof slope and alterations to the rear elevation.
Agent Mr Bruce Davison
On behalf of Mrs Lesley Chen
Registered Number 17/06664/FULL Date amended/
Date Application 27 July 2017 completed 9 August 2017
Received
Historic Building Grade | Unlisted
Conservation Area Bayswater
1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission.

2. SUMMARY

Permission is sought for the excavation of a basement beneath the footprint of the dwelling, installation
of three roof lights in the rear roof slope and alterations to the rear fenestration including the creating of
new window openings at ground and first floor levels.

The proposal was revised during the course of the application. The scheme as originally proposed
included the installation of 3No. dormer windows in the rear roofslope, these has been amended to be
roof lights.

Objections have been received from local residents on the grounds of the impact of the proposed
additional windows on residential amenity and the potential for disruption and damage during the
course of the basement construction.

The key issues are:

- Impact on the character and appearance of the building and conservation area.
- Impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents.

The proposed development is considered to accord with the relevant policies in the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP) and Westminster’s City Plan (the City Plan) and is therefore acceptable in
land use, design and amenity terms. As such, the application is recommended for approval subject to
the conditions as set out on the draft decision letter.

3. LOCATION PLAN

Page 23




Item No.

Paddington Station
(Terminus)

This production includes mapping data
licensed from Ordnance Survey with the
permission if the controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright and /or
database riahts 2013.

Page 24



4. PHOTOGRAPHS

Item No.

Application site, 101 Eastbourne Mews, front elevation.

YR o e o e e e e

Page 25




Item No.

3

VIEW FROM FIRST FLOOR LEVEL OF 101
EASTBOURNE MEWS LOOKING OUT TO 101
WESTBOURNE TERRACE.

Page 26




Item No.

5. CONSULTATIONS

SOUTH EAST BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

Request informative relating to the Council’s policy on basements and the requirement to
submit approval for a construction management plan. Neighbours views should be taken into
consideration.

BUILDING CONTROL
No objection to structural methodology. Noted that basement may not comply with
requirements for means of escape.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING
No objection.

CROSS LONDON RAIL LINKS LTD
No comment.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
No. Consulted: 58

The proposal was revised during the course of the application. The consultation responses to
the original and revised proposals are summarised as follows:

ORIGINAL CONSULTATION:
Total No. of replies: 9
No. of objections: 9

In summary, the following issues were raised:

Amenity
- Loss of privacy
- Overlooking.
- Light spill from windows.

Construction
- Risk of subsidence to neighbouring properties.
- Damage to property during construction.
- Noise disturbance during construction.
- Traffic increase during construction.
- Building hours should be reduced.
- Impact on the water table.

Other
- Conflict within the adjacent building works.

RECONSULTATION:
Total No. of replies: 6
No. of objections: 6

In summary, the following issues were raised:

Page 27



Item No.

- Inaccurate description of revised proposal.
- Overlooking, loss of privacy, light pollution, and noise disturbance.
- Inconsistencies on drawings.

PRESS ADVERTISEMENT / SITE NOTICE:
Yes

6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
6.1 The Application Site

101 Eastbourne Mews is a 3 storey property located in the Bayswater Conservation Area.
The site is not listed nor subject to any other designations, however the properties to the rear
on Westbourne Terrace are Grade Il Listed.

6.2 Recent Relevant History

03/02356/FULL

Erection of 2nd floor mansard roof extension providing additional floorspace to an existing
house.

Application Permitted 31 July 2003

16/06418/FULL

Variation of Condition 4 of planning permission dated 23 July 2003 (RN: 03/02356/FULL) for
the erection of 2nd floor mansard roof extension providing additional floorspace to an existing
house. Namely, to allow the windows on the rear elevation to be openable to 5cm to ventilation.
Application Permitted 25 August 2016

7. THE PROPOSAL

Permission is sought for the excavation of a basement, installation of 3No. roof lights in rear
roof slope and alterations to the rear elevation namely the enlargement of an existing window
and introduction of an additional window at ground floor level. The proposal has been
amended during the course of the application to include rooflights in the rear roof slope rather
than dormers.

Table 1: Floorspace figures (GIA sqm)

Existing Proposed Increase

Single Family

Dwelling (Class C3) 145 191 +46

8. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
8.1 Land Use

The application will result in an increase in residential floorspace of 46sgm (GIA) as a result of
the proposed basement. The increase in residential floorspace to extend the existing

Page 28



Item No.

3

residential property is considered acceptable in land use terms and is compliant with Policy
H3 of the UDP and Policy S14 of the City Plan, both of which  seek to increase residential
floorspace within Westminster.

8.2 Townscape and Design

101 Eastbourne Mews is an unlisted building location within the Bayswater Conservation Area.
The building is a traditional mews building and like a number of other properties within the
mews benefits from a mansard roof extension to create a second floor.

The relevant design policies are DES 1, DES 5, DES 6 and DES 9 of Westminster’'s Unitary
Development Plan and S28 of Westminster’s City Plan.

The proposal has been revised during the course of the application, to amend the previously
proposed dormers windows in the rear roofslope to rooflights.

The windows proposed to the main rear elevation will be constructed of timber and be double
glazed. It is also proposed to replace the existing windows at rear first floor level with double
glazed timber units. These alterations are considered acceptable in design terms subject to a
condition that the windows are painted white and maintained as such. A further condition is
recommended to ensure that the proposed rooflights are conservation style units.

The proposed recessed window at rear ground floor level, whilst not a common feature within
the terrace, is considered acceptable given its discreet location to the rear of the site
preventing it from being visible in any public views.

Given its subterranean nature, the proposed basement does not raise concerns in terms of
design, as once completed it will not be visible from the public realm.

Subject to the above conditions, the application is considered acceptable in design and
conservation terms.

8.3 Residential Amenity

Policy ENV13 of the UDP states that the Council will resist proposals that would result in a
material loss of daylight/sunlight, particularly to dwellings, and that developments should not
result in a significant increased sense of enclosure, overlooking or cause unacceptable
overshadowing. Similarly, Policy S29 of Westminster's City Plan aims to protect the amenity of
residents from the effects of development.

Rooflights

The proposal originally included the erection of three dormer windows in the rear of the existing
mansard roof. This was amended to three rooflights in response to a number of objections that
were received on the grounds that the dormers would result in overlooking and loss of privacy
to the properties rear. The revised drawings were consulted on and subsequently further
objections were received maintaining objections on the grounds of overlooking, light pollution
and noise.

An objection has noted that permission was recently refused for similar rooflights at No 103
Eastbourne Mews, due to loss of amenity to neighbouring residents. This application was

Page 29



Item No.

subsequently appealed and the Inspector did not agree with the reason for refusal. The
inspector commented as follows:

"It appears to me that the proposed arrangement of high level windows would not result in
a substantially greater overall area of glazing, or significantly increase the number of
windows that could be opened. That being the case, | find that the potential levels of light
spill, noise or disturbance experienced by neighbouring occupants at 103 and 105
Westbourne Terrace would not be so materially increased as to warrant the withholding of
planning permission."

The application at No 103 included a different arrangement for the rear rooflights, but is still a
consideration. Nevertheless each application must be assessed on its individual merits.

Rooflights are common features in the rear roof slope of mansard roofs, with many of the
adjacent properties also having windows at this level. During the course of the application, the
applicant has agreed for these windows to be opaque glazed, which will ensure that
overlooking is minimised. While it is granted there would be some increase in light spill due to
the addition of the three new windows at second floor level, it is not considered that the impact
would be so significant as to warrant a reason for refusal in this instance, particularly given the
opaque nature of the windows which will help to defuse light.

Ground/First Floor rear windows:

With regards to the windows at first floor level they will be replaced like for like, they are at
present obscure glazed and restricted by a condition relating to planning permission granted
August 2016 so that they cannot be opened further than 5cm. In order to prevent these
windows being fully openable, a condition to secure details of the window restrictors to be
installed to prevent full opening of these windows is recommended.

The window openings to be created at ground floor level will be subject to a condition to require
that they are obscure glazed and fixed shut to prevent any overlooking or loss of privacy to the
property to the rear.

Conclusion:

An objection has been raised on the grounds of inconsistencies with the applicants supporting
documents in relation to the openable/opacity of rear windows. Subject to the conditions, it is
not considered that the objections on the grounds of amenity can be sustained. The proposals
are therefore considered to be in accordance with policies ENV 13 and S 29.

8.4 Transportation/Parking

The proposal does not represent an increase in residential units or an unacceptable loss of
parking as such the proposal is hot contrary to TRANS 23. Furthermore, there is no
requirement for the provision of additional cycle parking.

8.5 Economic Considerations

No economic considerations are applicable for a development of this size.

8.6 Access

Page 30



Item No.

Access arrangements will remain unchanged.
8.7 Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Refuse /Recycling:
The proposal does not represent any increase in residential units, it is not considered
necessary to require details of waste storage to be submitted.

8.8 London Plan
This application raises no strategic issues.
8.9 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

The City Plan and UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are
considered to be consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

8.10Planning Obligations

Planning obligations are not relevant in the determination of this application.
8.11Environmental Impact Assessment

Not applicable to a development of this scale.

8.12 Other Issues

Basement:

The proposed basement development is compliant with the City Plan policy on basement
development (Policy CM28.1). The policy requires the basement developments to residential
buildings not to extend beneath more than 50% of the garden land of the original. As the
basement sits under the footprint of the existing building this does not apply. As a result, the
associated parts of the policy (soil depth, landscaping etc.) are not considered relevant to this
application.

Objections have been received from adjoining occupiers on the basis of the potential for
subsidence as a result of the basement development and the potential for damage to adjoining
properties during construction.

Building Control have assessed the proposed basement, the accompanying structural method
statement, the method of construction, underpinning and safeguarding of the neighbouring site
and confirmed that these are acceptable. They have confirmed that the proposal to safeguard
adjacent properties during construction is considered to be acceptable and that the proposal
would not increase the likelihood of flooding in the local area and it should not have
significant effects on the structural stability of neighbouring building.

The Building Control Officer has raised concern regarding means of escape from the

basement, however, it is not considered a planning issue and is dealt with under Building
Regulations. An informative is recommended alerting the applicant to this potential issue.

Page 31



Item No.

3

Objections have also been received with regards to noise disturbance during the construction
works. The City Council’s standard condition with regards to hours of works is recommended
and considered reasonable to control any potential disruption to neighbours during works.

The applicants have submitted the required Appendix A to indicate their compliance with the
Code of Construction Practice which is to be disturbed by condition. The proposed basement is
compliant with all other relevant elements of the policy and considered acceptable.

Other:

An objection has been received from the resident located to the rear of the site on the grounds
that the works will conflict with their approved extension, which they are currently
implementing. The applicant has updated the drawings to show the approved development
and to confirmed that the works do not obstruct what is being built. Any issues in relation to
party walls are a private matter.

In terms of the requested reduction to working hours by an adjoining occupier, the City Council
imposes conditions that restrict hours of work that are consistent with usual practice in the
borough and Environmental Health legislation. It would not be considered reasonable to
impose greater restrictions which would also likely prolong construction times and subsequent
disturbances to residents.

©

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Application form

Response from Highways Planning — Development Planning, dated 4™ October 2017.
Response from Crossrail Limited dated 21 August 2017.

Response from South East Bayswater Residents Association, dated 30 August 2017
Letter from occupier of Flat 7, 103-105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 31 August 2017
Letter from occupier of 101E Westbourne Terrace, London, dated 3 September 2017
Letter from occupier of 101E Westbourne Terrace, London, dated 3 September 2017
Letter from occupier of 105 Eastbourne Mews, London, dated 31 August 2017

Letter from occupier of 16A Chilworth St, London, dated 24 August 2017

10. Letter from occupier of Flat B, 101 Westbourne Terrace, dated 28 August 2017

11. Letter from occupier of Flat 3, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 24 August 2017

12. Letter from occupier of Flat 5, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 28 September 2017
13. Letter from occupier of Flat 7, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 17 August 2017

©CoNoO~wWNE

NEIGHBOUR RESPONSES TO REVISED CONSULTATION
14. Letter from occupier of 101E Westbourne Terrace, London, dated 29 September 2017
15. Letter from occupier of Flat B, 101 Westbourne Terrace, dated 30 September 2017
16. Letter from occupier of Flat 7, 103-105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 25 September 2017
17. Letter from occupier of Flat 3, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 26 September 2017
18. Letter from occupier of Flat 7, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 25 September 2017
19. Letter from occupier of Flat 7, 103 Westbourne Terrace, dated 2 October 2017

(Please note: All the application drawings and other relevant documents and Background Papers
are available to view on the Council’'s website)

Page 32



Item No.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT THE PRESENTING
OFFICER: RUPERT HANDLEY BY EMAIL AT rhandley@westminster.gov.uk.

Page 33




Item No.

10. KEY DRAWINGS

Existing (Top) and Proposed (Bottom) Front and Rear Elevations

SCALE - 150 @ A4 VBITE - 101 EASTHOURNE MEWS) (SITE - 101 EASTBOURNE MEWS)

|

- Hﬂ %_.. -
T .'l‘-i‘im‘lm“\'\'l'l'\‘n‘.ﬁ'\'\'\'l‘\'|‘\'\'E‘|‘|‘|'|_ - :I\E\II‘:ITI‘I‘IT:TIIII‘Il\lll\llll-l\-‘l‘\ll\-ﬁ\‘l‘\ll‘\l h‘L
§Iﬂ‘% tl %‘IM‘ T | :\l‘l \:l:\:l:l:l:l:\:\:\:l:l:l:|:\:|:\:l:l:\:\:\:\:\:\:l:\:l:\:
-:“n I\\\I\:&mll\\lllllll | | - J;\[II\I\I:‘::‘:H::I:_ :'::':':':HMH T nn
| P
| g

Enztng Flues
szanciated
Eoler retaned

e g
———— — I T AT TP AT I I TTITTIIITTT TTTATITTY
T T T TITTTIITITRETITIITTITIITTIIT TTIITTT rigral Access
’— FET TTTTTITITIITIITTTIIITITFRITITII <] o[ Lasoerresazzones
() 300, New Vel type pliched rctights
v on zicpe roof. WITH CESCURED GLAZINE
" TTTTTITIT1
T TER TTITITITI
T P Py P T Nt e Wi 11| i e A s
I | W1 A —
Er T[T LI TITITITIT JjTT
Noew 110 i foul
Bump vem o
New 0., timber windows oarted whte | e
e ex cpirings i replace e
WITH GEBCURED GLAZING
vt
New proposed itske vent Cuvre i new <
= 250 1 250w o exract
- Vet ounre (Metalioue- PRG-
He e e e Caiour whie 35 rEnder)
Fived wndo. WITH CE3CURED GLAZING cpering o ex wat wih .5
Fierered zids pane timber mindom paceed whie. Fxed
£t WITH CEICURED GLAZNG
e PC it psinted whie
Lena ranes ue FCCn marses wha)
Velux Fia Rost e Smsar roanignt wan T
weitz exiemal Tame e recess Lesa raat eropeny ot
4 Ml Fascia o eieva
on Section GG o 1018 ame S 1318 Westboume Temace Fians
n \ approved pursuant o 1510SK0FULL
15105207 . | M Mo permiazion hax been chiained
1 conract 1 e rear wal of
Froposea zectn cC
1om 101 8 Westzoure Temace Flannng 131 Easmaune Me
- Acpication oversd - Showng partal eevat Froposea 2ection CC rom 1018 Wesmou
NO PROPOSED CHANGES TO THIS ELEVATION Teraca mranng Apeiatn 151840
——_| overse

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION
(EASTBOURNE MEWS)

Page 34




Item No.

Existing Floor Plans

B
Pampat

EXISTING ROOF PLAN

B
EXISTING SECOND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN

BCALE- 1.850 @ A1

[ ] 3 3
Mair.

N
2
R

Page 35




Item No.

Proposed floorplans

(MOILYASTE HLNOS OL SIHOMH00Y M3N d350d404d)

NV1d 4004 d3S0d0dd

l
[y
paueas T

fri= Bunsics’ am

]

by )

hnv Ll mM
v e 2 L -
o

-

- =,
LT
|_ 2 paysed
pin

|

—
pr
piatl
28 | LI

(NOLL¥AS TS HLNOS OL SIHOMA00H M3N 03S0doEd)

NY1d 40014 ANOD3S d3S0d0Hd

r

U3 dwnd ingy.

°P gl | MaN
o | loas=

L ]
_ T

e uu._lﬂ — ORI MIU M U005 O
Wan DUE 12 RIRRURE Buucoy maN

T ATTYNEILNI ONIHOOTS M3N
NOLLYASTE HLNOS OL SMOANIA LNIWS0Y 134 0350d0ud)

N¥Y1d 40074 1S41d d3S0d0Hd

[
S

s

bodal TE 5

(HOOT4 ONNOYD TYNEILNI 40 ONITISA0NTY 2
NOILYATTI HLNOS OL SIHANCTISDNINSHO M3N 035040ud)

NY1d H007d ANNOHD d3S0d0Hd

| AN SNNGRLEY 08 MR
I 97 LILILLLLL L

Ty R # .—|Ha.ll._ * _ #

; & (e Aped e jou 21 diussume smam

SUMONZET 101 HEM EEY
spezINEE TG MIN
Ny P2aY pUR BUFES 2N35a0
WU RO DD N

L
(payseR) uomsod ! _|
M 2l W T Puncis 7 o ama maN
|

SREE SIED 3As WA

10013 SED WA

ShaN  HEHOLDY
SNt o

SMIN INUNOBLSYI LOL EHGM,.
PP 58
B3RO0 00y DUNS

aum I
smunag
puersi

Pl
Pt
E‘ I

81 w0 W B
£ SSYSTRYSIO B0 WIITE “WON

11 SR s CLUNG 0} BIF UL} Mot

% %3 0 Bupseds waN
OIS O LSOO (RN
3OVHYIL INGNOALS3IM LD

ﬁ;_wwﬂ-ﬁ_: =] :T_
\\\W\ 777777777

=Bup) [jew pIEREUl
s R ma

B —
!
i

refies _.2:\«.; 3 ML
T Al _ {74l BRASER) auancy 1
1IRAKD LA 0T

pUNCUNE pasey
CLT2UUGY J30P DRSEE O3 WM JSE00) RIS
P00 SRI00D V40 ST 20, J00K IRId , R, M

SPUNAIS ;R 8 A PRRUIY

BID WIDLE K3 0 S5 SETURE IR FIAED

S | SWTST WSS [LNDNS puR
QRIS PUR SUUUILIAPUN Sl e N 1)
Uodas SRIUDUT (BAIINSE O Ry

Rl
WAL R @ BuUEEun o

(1237 LNIWSSYE M3N 0350d0ud)

NY1d 40074 ANNOHD H3MOT d3S0d0Hd

(1fos-ua-fug)

- _V ...........

chand o 3npuc Buam

a38; 04 12eads BuIUE PRIGITSL) B B3
N B JULITE LR

Jawas | Eane
%3 0} JAULED O JAE Wy B 38008

(payzze) | "

1200 Buoey e s o e s e g

p— Lﬁl—lﬂuﬁuu. - NS E0N0 X3 O [DRUL0D

™ P noge o) dhand INoj Woy
L ___ =i

dwind im0 0P WSy

U o3 300 405 B S| S 0 3]
ez
A3ANG T3 0} 133UL03 03 BuEd ArogR

PN Sy 393N AW
o dn s M

uind oy 05 DALY 8 HIEM

UORIBLUDT|

u SEURYISID dwnd Nod BP WSS
(1005-ud-6s1) By Jwﬁmu

1 e
JWIN0 JANET T3 0] PANAULDD S0 108

DIV EIP WLIDH O A R RS

e ey

PwaTs WON )0

104 595 O} SIAD DRAKS | IWTE

(Z005-wd-fag)

oday LRI D ——

[ IRImAnaS 0 SRl
PUS 7 uzse o SuaEERLnGy
PR KR IR O RLUILSPUN D

ANogR 0o

1] SUoaUed P (e Ma

g
wBos -3 Wos Z,N.v

Gms wass 3oumn e Asa

Page 36



Item No.

Existing (Top) and Proposed (Bottom) Section

(SITE - 101 EASTBOURNE MEWS)

BCALE - 150 @ A1

poeees N |

RODF TERRAGE (MAINTENANGE ACCTESS ONLY)

SITE - 101 EASTBOURNE MEWS

101 WESTBOURNE TGE

{SITE - 101 EASTBOURNE MEWS)

SCALE- 150 @Al ‘F

ROOF TERRACE (MAINTENARCE ACCESS DALY)

geoRoo]

EASTBOURNE MEWS)
LG REoM

New oonng |
cemwors =0

b =scroou

WITH SBSCURED GLAZING.

New 110mm dia foul pump vert pipe
Benng ex.

£ winaows i panted
" WEAE It new PC 0 10 matc ex
Fixed. WITH DESCURED GLAZNG

wr
=N/ DINING

New footing f joiss and rew
steewcrk (Gazmed)

0 140fm Bioen
50 dhpeiwart:

7 7

Ly

<=1 Welax " Fiat ool or simiar roofight

fo # rebbipnt

oAt
MULTI-FURFOSE ROOM

i
Agpraxex. ound i3 :
S
e
\\
NewR.C. e nn-%ﬁ
e e
3

[NEW BASEMENT)

Rafer io Swacural Engnesrs reoon
for new permeter urceRIEING N ti3
30 Structury s Seamz Ntz

. Approw ex.found: (dashed]

[l wewm.c. unoemnneg unas

Sropeaed Sacion AL mm

HEHH
THE

1018 Wesoume Temace 1S1DS20FULL

PROPOSED SECTION C (SHOWING SITE CONTEXT)

Page 37




Item No.

3
DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 101 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ,
Proposal: Excavation to create single storey basement level, installation of three rooflights in the

rear roof slope and alterations to the rear elevation.

Plan Nos: DP-1011-EX-PL0O0O; DP-1011-EX-PL0O01; DP-1011-EX-PLOO1A,
DP-1011-EX-PL002; DP-1011-EX-S001; DP-1011-EX-S002; DP-1011-EX-EL001,
DP-1011-PR-PLO01; DP-1011-PR-PLOO1A rev B; DP-1011-PR-PLO01B rev C;
DP-1011-PR-PLO02 rev D; DP-1011-PR-S001 rev D; DP-1011-PR-S002 rev D;
DP-1011-PR-ELOO1 rev D.

For information only: Structural Calculation - Martin Redston Associates; Sequence of
Underpinning - Martin Redston Associates; Foundation Plan - Martin Redston
Associates.

Case Officer: Victoria Coelho Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 6204

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s) or Reason(s) for Refusal:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
_other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 Except for piling, excavation and demolition work, you must carry out any building work which can
be heard at the boundary of the site only:
0 between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;
o] between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturday; and
o] not at all on Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

You must carry out piling, excavation and demolition work only:
0] between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday; and
0 not at all on Saturdays, Sundays; bank holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take place outside these hours unless otherwise agreed through a Control of
Pollution Act 1974 section 61 prior consent in special circumstances (for example, to meet police
traffic restrictions, in an emergency or in the interests of public safety). (C11AB)

Reason: @0 p
To protect the environment of neighbouring occupiers. This is as set out.in S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we

Page 38



Item No.

adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the choice
of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless differences are
shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to this permission.
(C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

Prior to the commencement of any demolition or construction on site the applicant shall submit an
approval of details application to the City Council as local planning authority comprising evidence
that any implementation of the scheme hereby approved, by the applicant or any other party, will
be bound by the council's Code of Construction Practice. Such evidence must take the form of a
completed Appendix A of the Code of Construction Practice, signed by the applicant and
approved by the Council's Environmental Inspectorate, which constitutes an agreement to
comply with the code and requirements contained therein. Commencement of any demolition or
construction cannot take place until the City Council as local planning authority has issued its
approval of such an application. (C11CB)

Reason:

To protect the environment of neighbouring occupiers. This is as set out in S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

The glass that you put in the windows at rear first and second floor level must not be clear glass,
and must only be openable by 5cm. You must apply to us for approval of the following:

1) A sample of the glass (at least 300mm square).
2) Detailed drawings showing the window restrictors to a maximum opening of 5cm.

You must not start work on the relevant part of the development until we have approved the
details. You must then fit the type of glass and window restrictors we have approved and must not
change them without our permission. (C21DB)

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in S29 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R21AC)

Page 39



Item No.

The glass that you put in the windows at ground floor level in the rear elevation of the building
must not be clear glass, and you must fix it permanently shut. You must apply to us for approval of
a sample of the glass (at least 300mm square). You must not start work on the relevant part of the
development until we have approved the sample. You must then fit the type of glass we have
approved and must not change it without our permission. (C21DB)

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R21BC)

The rooflights in the rear roofslope must be conservation style units.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

All new windows (except the rooflights) must be constructed of timber, painted white and
maintained that colour.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

You must not form any windows or other openings (other than those shown on the plans)
in the outside walls of the building or erect any extensions without our permission. This is
despite the provisions of Classes A, B and C of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country
Planning General Permitted Development Order (England) 2015 (as amended) (or any
order that may replace it). (C21EB)

Reason:

To prevent an overdevelopment of the site and to protect the environment of people in
neighbouring properties. This is as set out in S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016) and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R21EC)

Page 40



Item No.

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016), Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning
briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service,
in order to ensure that applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which
is likely to be considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered
to the applicant at the validation stage.

With reference to condition 4 please refer to the Council's Code of Construction Practice at
(https://lwww.westminster.gov.uk/code-construction-practice). You will be required to enter into
the relevant Code appropriate to this scale of development and to pay the relevant fees prior to
starting work. The Code does require the submission of a full Site Environmental Management
Plan or Construction Management Plan as appropriate 40 days prior to commencement of works
(including demolition). These documents must be sent to
environmentalsciences2@westminster.gov.uk.

Appendix A or B must be signed and countersigned by Environmental Sciences prior to the
submission of the approval of details of the above condition.

You are urged to give this your early attention

The means of escape from the basement may not meet Building Control regulations. You should
seek formal advice from a Building Control officer regarding this.

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

The construction manager should keep residents and others informed about unavoidable
disturbance such as noise, dust and extended working hours, and disruption of traffic. Site
neighbours should be given clear information well in advance, preferably in writing, perhaps by
issuing regular bulletins about site progress.

Page 41



Item No.

3

Please note: the full text for informatives can be found in the Council’'s Conditions, Reasons &
Policies handbook, copies of which can be found in the Committee Room whilst the meeting

is in progress, and on the Council’'s website.

Page 42




Agenda Iltem 3

Item No.
4
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING Date Classification
ég‘:/lLl\l/lcl:ﬁTTElgNS SUB 31 October 2017 For General Release
Report of Ward(s) involved
Director of Planning Hyde Park
Subject of Report 103 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ
Proposal Demolition of existing mews building behind retained front facade and

party walls and reconstruction of mews building over ground, first and
second floor.

Agent Mr Matt Hedges
On behalf of Caroline Beecham and John lydon
Registered Number 17/03716/FULL Date amended/
. . . Comp|eted 5 June 2017
Date Application 30 April 2017
Received

Historic Building Grade | Unlisted

Conservation Area Bayswater

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission.

2. SUMMARY

The application relates to the demolition of the single mews building behind the retained front facade,
and reconstruction of a single mews property incorporating a mansard roof level to be used as a single
dwellinghouse. The building is not listed but is located in the Bayswater Conservation Area.

The key considerations are:

e Impact upon the character and appearance of the conservation area.
¢ Impact upon the amenity of neighbours.
e Impact upon the highway network.

Objections have been received from neighbours on grounds of construction management, loss of
amenity to the rear and loss of garage. However, notwithstanding the comments received, for the
reasons set out in detail in this report and subject to the recommended conditions, the proposed
development is acceptable and would comply with the relevant policies in Westminster’s City Plan (the
City Plan) and the Unitary Development Plan (UDP). It is therefore recommended that planning
permission is granted.

Page 43




Item No.

3. LOCATION PLAN

This production includes mapping data
licensed from Ordnance Survey with the
permission if the controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright and /or
database rights 2013.

All rights reserved License Number LA
100019597

Page 44



4. PHOTOGRAPHS

Item No.

Application site, 103 Eastbourne Mews, front elevation

Page 45




Item No.

View of existing garage and ground floor rear openable sash window

Existing first floor glazing to rear bedroom

Page 46




6.1

6.2

Item No.

CONSULTATIONS

SOUTH EAST BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

- Mansard roof would fill sole existing break in roof line.

- Loss of garage justified in this instance given certificate of lawfulness for conversion.
- Provision of openable windows justified in this instance given existing openable
windows.

- Request condition withdrawing permitted development rights.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER

Loss of existing garage parking contrary to policy TRANS23 of UDP. However given that
the conversion of the existing garage to habitable accommodation appears to have been
deemed lawful under application 16/12248/CLOPUD it is not clear if the “loss” of the
garage can now be resist.

CLEANSING MANAGER
No objections subject to details of refuse and recycling provisions.

ADJOINING OWNER/OCCUPIERS
No consulted: 61 No of replies to date: 4 (3 objections, 1 comment)

Amenity

- Light disturbance from artificial light from rooflights.

- Replacement first floor sash window to rear un-neighbourly.

- Loss of light and enclosure as a result of redeveloped building.

Highways
- Loss of garage will result in increased pressure to on-street parking.

Other

- Rear wall poorly maintained.

- Demolition details relating to rear wall unclear with regards to required access from
private land to rear.

- Disturbance upon neighbours arising during construction period.

SITE/PRESS NOTICE
Yes.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Application Site
The application site comprises a two storey mews single family dwellinghouse on
Eastbourne Mews. It is located within the Bayswater Conservation Area. The buildings to
the rear on Westbourne Terrace are Grade |l listed.

Recent Relevant History

15/02750/FULL

Page 47



8.1

8.2

Item No.

Extension and remodelling of mews property, including demolition of existing property,
retention of front facade and Party Walls, and reconstruction with new storey at second
floor level.

Application Refused 8 October 2015

This application was refused on grounds of; loss of existing garage, and loss of amenity
upon residents at the rear as a result replacement high level windows. The decision was
appealed against and dismissed on grounds of loss garage only. The Inspectors decision
did not consider there to be a material loss of amenity upon occupiers to the rear given the
presence of existing windows in predominantly the same location and of a similar size to
those proposed. A partial award of costs was awarded to the Appellant against the
Council's second reason for refusal on amenity grounds.

16/12248/CLOPUD

Conversion of integral garage into habitable space in connection with existing
dwellinghouse and associated internal alterations.

Application Permitted 13 February 2017

The above certificate of lawfulness was sought to confirm that there were no historic
conditions relating to the protection of the existing garage. The Councils records did not
indicate any such conditions and the certificate was issued.

The PROPOSAL

Demolition of existing mews building behind retained front facade and party walls, and
reconstruction of mews building providing a single dwellinghouse over ground, first and
second floor, incorporating mansard roof.

Existing GIA (m2) | Proposed GIA (m2) +/-

Dwelling house

(Class C3) 111 147 +36m2

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
Land Use
The development would provide a replacement dwellinghouse of increased residential
floor area, which is acceptable in land use terms pursuant to S14 of the adopted City Plan
and H3 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan.
Townscape and Design
Principle of demolition
Policy DES 9 of the Councils adopted Unitary Development Plan states;

1) Buildings identified as of local architectural, historical or topographical interest in
adopted conservation area audits will enjoy a general presumption against demoalition.

Page 48



8.3

Item No.

4

2) Development proposals within conservation areas, involving the demolition of unlisted
buildings, may be permitted
a) If the building makes either a negative or insignificant contribution to the character or
appearance of the area, and/or
b) If the design quality of the proposed development is considered to result in an
enhancement of the conservation area's overall character or appearance, having
regard to issues of economic viability, including the viability of retaining and repairing
the existing building

Eastbourne Mews is described as being essential to the character of the area within the
Bayswater Conservation Area Audit and the building is considered to have a positive
impact on the character and appearance of the area. The main contribution is made by the
form and appearance of the building, principally the front elevation and change in scale
between the listed terrace behind and the mews. The front facade is to be retained with
some alterations to the windows and ground floor fenestration taking place. Given the
facade retention, and reconstruction of the building of similar scale, the special interest of
this building is considered to be retained. Furthermore, the proposed dormer window ties
in with others constructed either side. As such the part demolition is not objected to in
townscape terms.

Massing, elevation design treatment

Alterations to the front facade consist of the installation of replacement windows and
alterations to the ground floor fenestration, including the installation of a false garage door.
These alterations are considered acceptable.

A mansard roof form is proposed to tie in with others built either side. The front facade is of
a sympathetic design and in keeping with the proportions of the building in terms of the
roof pitch and positioning of dormers, and is less substantial than the dormer constructed
next door at No. 101. Its scale is therefore not objectionable. In terms of detailed design,
the mansard will be constructed with a lead clad finish and timber sash sliding windows for
the front dormers.

At the rear, a series of rooflights are proposed at first floor. It is a departure from the
standard mansard design but brings benefits of allowing light into the internal
accommodation, which is an existing feature of the site. Given its siting behind the
proposed rear parapet it is considered to be an acceptable design choice that is not
considered to cause harm to the character of the locality and conservation area or setting
of the listed buildings on Westbourne Terrace.

As such given that the resulting development will closely resemble the existing building,
and as the proposed mansard extension is of a sympathetic design and size, the
development is not considered to result in harm upon the character of the conservation
area and setting of adjoining listed buildings at the rear, and is considered acceptable.

Residential Amenity
Policy ENV13 of the UDP states that the Council will resist proposals that would result in a

material loss of daylight or sunlight, particularly to dwellings, and that developments
should not result in a significant increased sense of enclosure, overlooking or cause

Page 49



Item No.

unacceptable overshadowing. Similarly, Policy S29 of Westminster's City Plan aims to
protect the amenity of residents from the effects of development.

No 103 Westbourne Terrace is located directly behind No. 103 Eastbourne Mews, with
No. 105 Westbourne Terrace the next building along. Officers visited the split level
maisonette at No. 103 Westbourne Terrace. Objections from occupiers of these properties
to the rear have been received on grounds of; loss of light as a result of the mansard roof,
overlooking from openable first floor rear window, light disturbances from the row of new
windows behind the proposed rear parapet. These will be addressed in turn.

With regards to an increased sense of enclosure and losses of light upon neighbours at
103 Westbourne Terrace, the roof of the mansard would be approximately 1m higher than
the ridge of the existing roof and set back from the rear parapet wall, with the height the
parapet wall increasing in height by only 600mm. Given this relationship, the massing is
not considered to be such that it would unduly affect neighbours with respect to enclosure.

In terms of losses of sunlight, given the rear windows at 103 Westbourne Terrace to the
rear are not orientated within 90 degrees of due south, and the site is located to the north
east of Westbourne Terrace, it would not obstruct the trajectory of the sun from the south.
Therefore in accordance with the BRE Guidance (Site Layout Planning for Daylight and
Sunlight), a sunlight assessment would not be required.

In terms of daylight, the existing lower ground floor level at 103 Westbourne Terrace,
which is comprised of a rear garden and rear facing windows, adjoins the three storey
back wall of 103 Eastbourne Mews. As a result, daylight deficiencies are likely to be
experienced at lower ground level presently. Given the overall height of the rear wall, the
additional 600mm is relatively marginal and is unlikely to result in significant further
daylight reductions as to justify refusal.

In terms of the impact of the proposed strip of rear rooflights causing light emissions, this
issue has already been considered by the Planning Inspectorate and this current scheme
is unchanged. Paragraph 13 of the decision set out the following;

"It appears to me that the proposed arrangement of high level windows would not result in
a substantially greater overall area of glazing, or significantly increase the number of
windows that could be opened. That being the case, | find that the potential levels of light
spill, noise or disturbance experienced by neighbouring occupants at 103 and 105
Westbourne Terrace would not be so materially increased as to warrant the withholding of
planning permission."

As such the proposed new rooflights would not be considered to unduly impact the
amenity of neighbours to the rear with respect to the dispersion of artificial light, and
privacy.

With regards to the proposed ground floor window facing No. 103 Westbourne Terrace, it
would replace the existing window in the same location which is an openable sliding sash
with obscure glazing. The agent has confirmed in writing that the window will be obscure
glazed. Given the existing situation this is considered to be sufficient and would have
materially no greater impact than the current situation.

Page 50



8.4

Item No.

4

The proposals would not therefore be contrary to the objectives of policies S29 of the City
Plan and Policy ENV13 of the UDP.

Transportation/Parking

The existing building has an integrated garage as is commonly found on Eastbourne
Mews properties. The proposed dwellinghouse does not re provide the existing off street
parking space. The loss of off street parking is contrary to TRANS23 which states that:

"The permanent loss of any existing off-street residential car parking space will not be
permitted other than in exceptional circumstances."

The previous Inspectors decision agreed with the City Council's reasoning for retaining the
off-street residential car parking space, namely that it helped alleviate pressure upon
on-street parking in an area of identified parking deficiency and high levels of car
ownership. On the issue of whether the garage was of sufficient size to accommodate a
parked vehicle, the Inspector identified that a smaller car would be able to use the space,
despite its limited dimensions. In this current application, the applicants have prepared
additional supporting documentation showing a '‘Smart Four two' car drawn to scale
parked inside the garaging space, maintaining the space is not practical even for a small
smart car, which would require the wing mirrors to be folded in to fit. Whilst these
constraints are acknowledged, it should be noted that that the Inspector did not accept the
arguments in terms of limited car door opening space, given that this could be resolved
internally as part of a redevelopment of the site which the City Council do not object to.

On the matter of the conversion of the existing garage into habitable space under
permitted development, the Inspector stated that she was unable to reach a conclusion of
this point in the absence of a Certificate of Lawfulness. Since the appeal decision a
certificate of lawfulness has been obtained from the Council to confirm that the conversion
of the garage to habitable space could be undertaken without the need to obtain planning
permission, given Councils records did not uncover any historic conditions that restricted
such a conversion. In the Councils decision, it is remarked that such works would not
therefore constitute development as defined by Section 55a of the Town and Country
Planning Country Planning Act 1990. Officers site visit August 2017 as part of this current
application confirmed the garage was in use for habitable purposes, although the works
shown on the permitted development plans, namely the removal of the internal garage
partition had not been implemented.

In light of this decision which is a material consideration, as the garage has not been used
for parking of vehicles for a long period of time, its removal would not result in the
immediate decant of a parked vehicle onto surrounding on street parking spaces.
Consideration should also be had for the existing situation whereby the applicants tenants
are lawfully using the garage for habitable room purposes, and also the real prospect of
the applicant implementing the certificate of lawfulness floor plans to fully integrate it with
the ground floor living accommaodation.

In light of the above, it is not considered sustainable to withhold planning permission on

grounds of loss of off-street parking and is considered to justify a departure from the
objectives policy TRANS23 of the UDP in this instance.

Page 51



8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Item No.

Economic Considerations
No economic considerations are applicable for a development of this size.
Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Refuse /Recycling
The loss of the garage also results in a loss of cycle parking and refuse storage facility.
Details of refuse store are to be sough through planning condition.

Construction Management

Access to the site during construction works, including demolition of the rear facade, has
been queried. The site however is accessed from its frontage on Eastbourne Mews. Any
access requirement across land that falls outside the site is a private matter.

In terms of construction management and requested reduction to working hours by an
adjoining occupier, the City Council imposes conditions that restrict hours of work that are
consistent with usual practice in the borough and Environmental Health legislation. It
would not be considered reasonable to impose greater restrictions which would also likely
prolong construction times and subsequent disturbances to residents.

Sustainability

Policy S28 of the City Plan requires applicants to demonstrate how their scheme
incorporates elements of sustainable design through the submission of an Environmental
Performance Statement, with the intention on achieving KgC02 savings on 2013 Building
Regulations Part L levels. The submitted sustainability statement itemises the features of
the development, including building fabric improvements and energy efficient fittings and
also states that greater efficiency savings can be achieved through the redevelopment
rather than retention and refurbishment of the existing building. The statement does not
provide a breakdown on KgC02 savings on 2013 Building Regulations Part L levels as a
result of measures incorporated, however within the context of the scheme, this level of
detail is considered acceptable and meets the objectives of policy S28 of the City Plan.

London Plan
This application raises no strategic issues.
National Policy/Guidance Considerations

The City Plan and UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are
considered to be consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

Planning Obligations

Planning obligations are not relevant in the determination of this application.

The development is liable to pay Westminster's and the Mayor's Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL). Based on the applicant’s floor space figures, the estimated CIL payment would

be £14,400 for Westminster's CIL (£400 per square metre in the Residential Core area),
and £1,800 for the Mayor’s CIL (£50 per square metre in Zone 1). It should be noted

Page 52



Item No.

4

though that this amount is provisional and may be subject to relief or exemptions that may
apply in accordance with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as
amended).

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Application form

Letter from occupier of South East Bayswater Residents Association, dated 28 June 2017.
Memo from Highways Planning Manager, dated 14 June 2017.

Memo from Highways (waste), dated 15 June 2017.

Letter from occupier of Flat 3, 105 Westbourne Terrace, dated 26 June 2017.
Letter from occupiers of Flat 1, 103 Westbourne Terrace, dated 28 June 2017.
Letter from occupier of 105 Eastbourne Mews, dated 28 June 2017.

Letter from occupier of 105 Eastbourne Mews, dated 21 July 2017.

Email from Planning Agent, dated 6 August 2017.

10 Email from Architect, dated 9 August 2017.

11. Email from applicant, dated 23 August 2017.

CoNoAr®LNME

(Please note: All the application drawings and other relevant documents and Background Papers
are available to view on the Council’'s website)

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT THE PRESENTING
OFFICER: RUPERT HANDLEY BY EMAIL AT rhandley@westminster.gov.uk .

Page 53



mailto:rhandley@westminster.gov.uk

Item No.

10. KEY DRAWINGS
11.

Existing and Proposed ground floor plan




Item No.

Existing and proposed rear elevation

1T

Loft Lcin_'l. 15.62

First Flwt'chd. 1312

Ground F|L'.'l Level 10,01




Item No.

Mo 101

Existing and proposed front elevation

H%

L

L L

=
=]

Loft Ll:in:l 15.62

L L] L

First Fm.le\lﬂ' 1312

==k

Ground Flclil Level 1001

Mo 101

el ' =T
163 Easthorms M. Lansion W3 103EM| [Fassvn
femaiin == T
Gummag Frove Buvteon 0os

= GAIE13  [wmesm 183 | e
#omin ey A e
R et G |

e an
No.105

sess s

T ——
e e LIMITED VIEW




Item No.

Existing and proposed section CC

=\ - [

BATHROOM

LIVING ROCM

=




Item No.

4
DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 103 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ,
Proposal: Demolition of existing mews building behind retained front facade and party walls and
reconstruction of mews building over ground, first and second floor.
Plan Nos: 001 C, 002 A, 003, 004 B, 005 A, 006 A, 007 A, 008 A, 009, 021, 022, 024, 025, 026,
027, 028, 200, 201, 202, 203 A, 204 A, 205 A, 206 A, 209 A, 210, Design and Access

Statement

For information only

Memo from M. Hedges dated 9 August 2017, Existing ground floor plan (001 rev D),
Memo from R Shrimplin dated 6 August 2017, Note to third party representations
dated 6 August 2017

Case Officer: Samuel Gerstein Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 4273

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s) or Reason(s) for Refusal:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 Except for piling, excavation and demolition work, you must carry out any building work which can
be heard at the boundary of the site only:

o] between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;
0 between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturday; and
0 not at all on Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

You must carry out piling, excavation and demolition work only:
0 between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday; and
0 not at all on Saturdays, Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take place outside these hours unless otherwise agreed through a Control of
Pollution Act 1974 section 61 prior consent in special circumstances (for example, to meet police
traffic restrictions, in an emergency or in the interests of public safety). (C11AB)

Reason:

To protect the environment of neighbouring occupiers. This is as set out in S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

Page 58



Item No.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the choice
of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless differences are
shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to this permission.
(C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of the area. This is as set out in S28 of Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both of our Unitary Development Plan that
we adopted in January 2007. (R26AD)

The windows in the dormers hereby approved must be vertically sliding timber sash windows and
formed of painted timber to match the colour of existing windows in the building and maintained
that colour.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

The mansard roof must be clad in natural slates and dormers (roof and cheeks) clad in lead.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

You must not form any windows or other openings (other than those shown on the plans) in the
outside walls of the building or erect any extensions without our permission. This is despite the
provisions of Classes A, B and C of Schedule 2 to the Town and Country Planning General
Permitted Development Order (England) 2015 (as amended) (or any order that may replace it).
(C21EB)

Reason:

To prevent an overdevelopment of the site and to protect the environment of people in
neighbouring properties. This is as set out in S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016) and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R21EC)

You must paint all new outside rainwater and soil pipes, including any guttering to roof level, black
and keep them that colour. (C26EA)

Page 59



10

11

Item No.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Bayswater Conservation Area. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or
both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R26BE)

The ground floor rear window shall be a timber framed sliding sash window and shall be installed
and maintained with obscure glazing. You must apply to us for approval of a sample of the glass
(at least 300mm square). You must not start work on the relevant part of the development until we
have approved the sample. You must then fit the type of glass we have approved and must not
change it without our permission.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R21BC)

You must hang all doors or gates so that they do not open over or across the road or pavement.
(C24AA)

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in S41 of Westminster's
City Plan (November 2016) and TRANS 2 and TRANS 3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R24AC)

You must apply to us for approval of details of how waste is going to be stored on the site and how
materials for recycling will be stored separately. You must not start work on the relevant part of
the development until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then provide the
stores for waste and materials for recycling according to these details, clearly mark the stores and
make them available at all times to everyone using the dwellinghouse. (C14EC)

Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in S44 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 12 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

You must not carry out demolition work unless it is part of the complete development of the site.
You must carry out the demolition and development without interruption and according to the
drawings we have approved. (C29BB)

Reason:

To maintain the character of the Bayswater Conservation Area as set out in S25 and S28 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 9 (B) of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007 and Section 74(3) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. (R29AC)

Page 60



Item No.

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016), Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning
briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service,
in order to ensure that applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which
is likely to be considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered
to the applicant at the validation stage.

Under the Highways Act 1980 you must get a licence from us before you put skips or scaffolding
on the road or pavement. It is an offence to break the conditions of that licence. You may also
have to send us a programme of work so that we can tell your neighbours the likely timing of
building activities. For more advice, please phone our Highways Licensing Team on 020 7641
2560. (I35AA)

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 4

Item No.
5

CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING Date Classification
APPLICATIONS SUB
COMMITTEE For General Release
Report of Ward(s) involved
Director of Planning St James's
Subject of Report Flat 24, Garrick House, 63 - 66 St Martin's Lane, London, WC2N 4JS,
Proposal Erection of a roof extension to create a glazed sunroom with associated

roof terrace.
Agent Piers Smerin
On behalf of Mr Piers Smerin
Registered Number 17/04855/FULL Date amended/

— completed 2 June 2017

Date Application 2 June 2017
Received
Historic Building Grade | Unlisted
Conservation Area Covent Garden
1. RECOMMENDATION

Refuse planning permission — design and amenity (overlooking/loss of privacy).

2. SUMMARY

63 - 66 St Martins Lane is an unlisted, post-war building, which lies within the Covent Garden
Conservation Area. The application relates to the top floor flat (Flat 24).

Permission is sought for a glazed sunroom extension at main roof level with terrace. The erection of a
staircase, glass balustrading and a raised roof light/access hatch together with use of the roof as a
terrace was granted consent in July 2010. This consent has been partially implemented.

The key issues are:

*The Impact on the appearance of the building and upon the character and appearance of the Covent
Garden Conservation Area; and
*Impact on neighbouring resident’'s amenity.

The proposed development is considered to be unacceptable in design and residential amenity terms
and does not accord with policies within the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and Westminster's City
Plan: Strategic Policies (City Plan). As such, the application is recommended for refusal.

Page 63




3. LOCATION PLAN

ARING CROSS RQA'.-%;
X

[CP 2 i

This production includes mapping data
licensed from Ordnance Survey with the
permission if the controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright and /or
database rights 2013.

All rights reserved License Number LA
100019597

Page 64



4.

PHOTOGRAPHS

Item No.

Page 65




6.1

6.2

Item No.

CONSULTATIONS

CLLR TIM MITCHELL
Requests that the application be referred to Planning Committee for determination.

COVENT GARDEN AREA TRUST
No objections.

COVENT GARDEN COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

The proposed roof terrace would cause significant nuisance and harm to the amenity of
neighbours. This includes overlooking and loss of privacy, noise, light spillage and
security. If permission is granted, conditions should be included to limit the hours of use
of the terrace to 08:00 — 23:00 and to prohibit music during these hours, which should also
be included in residents leases.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED
No. Consulted: 93; Total No. of replies: 1; No. of objections: 1; No. in support: 0

Objection received from a neighbouring resident within 61 St. Martin’s Lane on the
following grounds:

Amenity:
o The proposed works will block sunshine to their rear terrace.
e The proposed works would impinge on privacy by constituting a new elevated
viewpoint onto the terrace and into their bedroom windows.

PRESS ADVERTISEMENT / SITE NOTICE: Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Application Site

63 - 66 St Martins Lane is an unlisted, post-war building, which lies within the Covent
Garden Conservation Area. It comprises ground plus seven upper storeys, with
commercial units at ground floor level and residential flats on the upper floors. The fifth
and sixth floors are set back from the St Martin’s Lane elevation and the seventh floor is
substantially set back with a large terrace. The application relates to the top floor flat.

Recent Relevant History
Planning permission was granted in July 2010 for the erection of a small infill extension at
seventh floor level; alterations to fenestration at sixth and seventh floor level; installation of

glass balustrading, access hatch and air conditioning unit at seventh floor roof level in
connection with use as a roof terrace (10/02612/FULL).

Page 66



7.

8.1

8.2

Item No.

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a roof extension to create a fully glazed
sunroom with green roof above and associated roof terrace.

Existing GIA (sgm) | Proposed GIA (sqgm) | +/-
Residential (Class 139 170 +31
C3)
Total 139 170 +31

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
Land Use

The extension would enlarge the existing top floor flat (Flat 24), creating additional
residential floorspace. In land use terms the creation of additional residential floorspace is
considered to be acceptable in accordance with Policy H3 of the UDP and Policy S14 of
the City Plan.

Townscape and Design

Policy DES6 of the UDP relates to roof level alterations and extensions and states that
permission may be refused for roof extensions to existing buildings (which may include the
installation of conservatories and roof terraces)in the following circumstances:

1) where any additional floors, installations or enclosures would adversely affect either the
architectural character or unity of a building or group of buildings

2) where buildings are completed compositions or include mansard or other existing forms
of roof extension

3) where the existing building’s form or profile makes a contribution to the local skyline or
was originally designed to be seen in silhouette

4) where the extension would be visually intrusive or unsightly when seen in longer public
or private views from ground or upper levels

5) where unusual or historically significant or distinctive roof forms, coverings,
constructions or features would be lost by such extensions.’

Westminster’'s ‘Development and Demolition in Conservation Areas’ SPG states that roof
extensions, should always complement the appearance of the existing building and,
where appropriate its neighbours; and that they will not be acceptable in principle, if they
have an adverse impact on the architectural integrity of a building and its setting, or upon
the character and appearance of the area.

The proposed extension would further increase the height of the existing building, which is

already equal or taller than neighbouring buildings. The previously consented roof terrace
with access hatch and balustrade added substantially less bulk/ massing to the roof level

Page 67




8.3

Item No.

5

than the massing proposed under this application (the access hatch being only 920mm in
height).

The seventh floor is shown on drawings from 1955, and was clearly designed to house
plant and as such is separate to the architectural composition of the building below. The
seventh floor has been converted into living space, but appears as an ‘extension’. The
proposed glazed extension would create a third design style alien to the seventh floor and
the original composition of the rest of the building, effectively representing an extension on
an extension. The location of the proposal, at the southern end of the building would also
exaggerate the current unbalanced appearance of what was originally a symmetrical
composition.

In terms of detailed design, the use of large areas of glazing and other modern materials
are considered incongruous to the character of the building and the conservation area.
The current main building incorporates subdivided windows with clear bands of solid
brickwork between. The proposed frameless glass extension includes no subdivision or
solid areas and has not been aligned with any part of the existing original fenestration or
that of the alternatively designed seventh floor. The proposal has an entirely modern
appearance that bears no resemblance to the host building.

The extension would be visible from ground level and would also be clearly visible from
the upper storeys of the surrounding buildings. These views highlight the presence of the
proposed extension, where reflections from the all glass fagade would cause further harm.

Due to its location, scale, massing, design and materials the proposed glazed sun room is
therefore considered to harm the appearance of the building and fail to maintain or
improve the character and appearance of the Covent Garden Conservation Area, contrary
to policies S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1, DES 6
and DES 9 of the UDP. Accordingly the proposals are recommended for refusal on design
grounds.

Residential Amenity

Policies S29 of the City Plan and ENV13 of the UDP seek to protect residential amenity in
terms of light, privacy, sense of enclosure and encourage development which enhances
the residential environment.

An objection has been received from a neighbouring residential occupier within 61 St.
Martin’s Lane (Flat 2) on the grounds that the proposed extension would block sunshine to
their rear terrace. And result in increased overlooking/ loss of privacy.

Given the orientation of the property and the scale and massing of the proposed extension
it is not considered that it will result in any significant loss of light to surrounding residential
properties.

The approved roof terrace on the property measures approx. 43.7 m2 and is set back from
the parapet on the eastern boundary of the roof by approx. 0.8m. The proposed sun room
would not be set back from this parapet and would measure approx. 35.5 m2 with an
associated terrace measuring 7.2sqm.

Page 68



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

Item No.

Whilst it is considered that the approved terrace is sufficiently distant from windows in
adjacent buildings to prevent an unacceptable loss of privacy. The fully glazed sun room
would allow the roof to be used more intensively than the terrace and would be positioned
closer to the residential properties to the rear, affording increased overlooking down onto
the terrace and two bedroom windows at 61 St Martin’s Lane (Flat 2). Although there is
already a degree of overlooking from the windows below at seventh floor level, the sun
room glazing would be considerably larger than any of the windows found on this elevation
of the building and it is considered that the proposals would lead to an unacceptable loss
of privacy over the existing situation.

Overall, it is considered that the proposals would not meet S29 of Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016) and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. The proposals are therefore recommended for refusal on residential
amenity grounds.

Transportation/Parking

The proposals would not have a material impact on traffic generation or on-street parking
pressure in this area.

Economic Considerations
No economic considerations are applicable for a development of this size
Access

The application does not propose any alteration to the existing means of access to this
private residential dwelling.

Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

None relevant.

London Plan
This application raises no strategic issues.
National Policy/Guidance Considerations

The City Plan and UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are
considered to be consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

Planning Obligations
Planning obligations are not relevant in the determination of this application.

This development does not generate a Mayor CIL or WCC CIL payment.

Page 69



Item No.

8.11 Environmental Impact Assessment
The application is not a sufficient scale to require an Environmental Impact Assessment.
8.12 Other Issues
None.
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS
Application form
E-mail from Clir Tim Mitchell, dated 27 September 2017
Response from Covent Garden Area Trust, dated 28 June 2017

Response from Covent Garden Community Association, dated 2 July 2017
Letter from occupier of Flat 2, 61, St. Martin's Lane, dated 4 August 2017

arowpdpE

(Please note: All the application drawings and other relevant documents and Background Papers
are available to view on the Council’'s website)

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT THE PRESENTING
OFFICER: JULIA ASGAR BY EMAIL AT jasgar@westminster.gov.uk

Page 70




Item No.

10. KEY DRAWINGS

Existing West Elevation

Erection ol ght bubazaddig, salam s i
roalightiescnes Inilch o2 st Dot loved in
eonfectinn wih i m @ Fool i granied

plansing consent reference | MCREILFLULL Bl
B —— S
r_&ME | i
?tl’)ﬂ'—| 2

- Hoa =t

_I I\

E-|,,-u

In T
=oEl
<

Page 71




Item No.

Proposed West Elevation

<

Page 72




Item No.

Existing East Elevation

Erection of glass balustrading, sircase and raised
rooflight/access hatch at seventh floor level in
connection with use a5 3 roof terrace granted
planning consent reference |M0261 FULL

E"‘_‘ﬁﬁ

(I
i

L

= HEH

=

Page 73




Item No.

Proposed East Elevation

1

FH HEH HEH EH

Page 74




Item No.

Existing North Elevation

Erection of ghiss balustrading, stircase and raised
rooflight/access hatch at seventh floor level in
connection with use a5 a roof terrace graned
planning consent reference |0/0261 LFULL

B

=t

=

Page 75




Item No.

5
Proposed North Elevation
] 9 , %
i i
I Z
el
i &
1

Page 76




Item No.

Existing South Elevation

J

Page 77




Item No.

5
Proposed South Elevation
B iy | =1
3 3
[x]

Page 78




Item No.

Existing Eighth Floor Plan

Page 79




Item No.

Proposed Eighth Floor Plan

fll—
o
2 i £
k]
£
]
£
g5
iq |
g
i
A
5 : N |

jEwaEny

Page 80




Item No.

Proposed Roof Plan

RIS

Page 81




Item No.

DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: Flat 24, Garrick House, 63 - 66 St Martin's Lane, London, WC2N 4JS,

Proposal: Erection of a roof extension to create a glazed sunroom with associated roof terrace.

Reference: 17/04855/FULL

Plan Nos: PL 001; PL 009; PL 010; PLO11; PL 012; PL 013; PL 014; PL 015;External
Materials/Finishes Data Sheet; East/West Elevations - History; Sixth Floor/Seventh
Floor Plans - History; High Level Views; Street Level Views; Surrounding Building
Heights; Design and Access Statement and Heritage Assessment dated 24 May
2017; Planning Statement dated 24 May 2017.

Case Officer: lan'/Corrie “ Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 1448

Recommen/de/d Condit’iyon"(s*) and‘kReason(s)

Reason:

Because of its location, scale, massing, design and materials the proposed glazed sun room would
harm the appearance of this building and fail to maintain or improve (preserve or enhance) the
character and appearance of the Covent Garden Conservation Area. This would not meet S25
and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1, DES 6 and DES 9 and paras
10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (X16AD)

Reason: e .

The glazed sun room would lead to an unacceptable loss of privacy for people in neighbouring
properties. This would not meet $29 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 13
of our Unitary Development Plan'that we adopted in January 2007. (X13AC)

Please note: the full text for informatives can be found in the Council’'s Condition‘s, Reasons &
Policies handbook, copies of which can be found in the Committee Room whilst the meeting
is in progress, and on the Council’'s website. '

Page 82



Agenda Iltem 5

Item No.
6
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING Date Classification
APPLICATIONS SUB
COMMITTEE 31 October 2017 For General Release
Report of Ward(s) involved
Director of Planning West End
Subject of Report 1 Balfour Place, London, W1K 2AR,
Proposal External alterations to existing single dwelling house (Class C3)

including roof level alterations, new half-height plant/access
enclosures, , adjustment of existing means of escape, relocation
of chimney, installation of new and replacement windows and
doors to southern (front) and eastern (side) elevations, lowering of
level of existing patio at ground floor level on eastern side of
property, repair and refurbishment of balustrade railings at street
level, replacement of existing metal staircases linking basement to
street level and creation of roof terrace with railings and screen.

Agent Alistair Grills Associates

On behalf of Mr Peter Cruddas

Registered Number 17/06598/FULL Date amended/

Date Application 25 July 2017 completed 25 July 2017
Received

Historic Building Grade | Unlisted

Conservation Area Mayfair

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission

2. SUMMARY

The application site is an unlisted building on the eastern side of Balfour Place at its junction with
Aldford Street, within the Mayfair Conservation Area. The building comprises basement, ground and
five upper floors and is in lawful use as a single family dwelling house.

Permission was granted on 19 July 2017 for alterations to the building and works are progressing on
site. This application seeks permission for the same works but also proposes the creation of a roof
level terrace, with a safety railing and a 1.8m high screen

The key issues for consideration are:

e The impact of the proposals upon the amenity of neighbouring residents and

Page 83




Item No.

6

e The impact of the alterations upon the character and appearance of the Mayfair Conservation
Area.

Objections have been received from neighbouring occupiers on amenity and design grounds.
However, subject to conditions, the proposals are considered to comply with relevant Unitary
Development Plan and City Plan policies and the application is therefore recommended for approval.

Page 84




3.

LOCATION PLAN

This production includes mapping data
licensed from Ordnance Survey with the
permission if the controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office (C) Crown Copyright and /or
database rights 2013.

All rights reserved License Number LA
100019597

Page 85



Item No.

4. PHOTOGRAPHS

Page 86




Item No.

Page 87




6.1

6.2

Item No.

CONSULTATIONS

RESIDENTS’ SOCIETY OF MAYFAIR AND ST JAMES'S:
Any response to be reported verbally

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

No. Consulted: 33
Total No. of replies: 3
No. of objections: 3
No. in support: 0

3 letters of objection raising some or all of the following issues:

Amenity

¢ potential noise disturbance and light pollution resulting from the use of the terrace,
particularly at night

e proposals contrary to previous restrictive condition to prevent the use of the roof for
sitting out

Design/townscape
e adverse impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area
PRESS ADVERTISEMENT / SITE NOTICE: Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Application Site
No. 1 Balfour Place is an unlisted building located within the Mayfair Conservation Area
and the Core Central Activities Zone (CAZ). The lawful use of the property, which
comprises basement, ground and five upper floors, is a as a single family dwelling house.
The surrounding area is mixed use in character comprising commercial offices, retail and
residential uses. The nearest residential properties are adjacent at 2 and 3-4 Balfour
Place, opposite on the upper floors of 7 and 8 Balfour Place and 3 and 4 Aldford Street
and to the rear, on the upper floors of commercial premises in South Audley Street.
Recent Relevant History
1 Balfour Place
19 July 2017: Permission was granted for “Alterations including roof level alterations
comprising of stair enclosure, relocation of water tank, means of escape and chimney,
installation of new and replacement of existing windows and doors to southern (front) and
eastern (side) elevations, lowering the level of the existing patio at ground floor level on

the eastern side and planting of green/living wall to the eastern party wall and replacement
of existing metal staircase from basement level to street level”

Page 88



8.1

8.2

Item No.

6

The original application included proposals for the creation of a roof level terrace. These
works were subsequently omitted from the scheme following an objection from the
occupiers of 2 Balfour Place and a condition was imposed to prevent access to the roof
other than for maintenance or means of escape purposes. The reason for this condition
was to safeguard neighbour’s privacy and environment.

The scheme also proposed the installation of a living wall in the rear courtyard, in place of
existing planters and trellis. A condition was imposed requiring the submission of details
(construction and planting) of the new living wall.

A further condition (condition 6) required the submission of detailed drawings to show
work to a stained glass window. An application to discharge this condition was approved
on 31 July 2017.

2 Balfour Place

Permission was granted in 2014, renewed in September 2017, for the erection of a fifth
floor roof extension to existing dwelling house incorporating rear terrace, new rooflight,

tank enclosure, roof level railings, relocation of plant to main roof and reconfiguration of
the means of escape. Not implemented.

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the external alterations to building including roof level
alterations, new half-height plant/access enclosures, reconfiguration of existing means of
escape, and relocation of chimney; installation of new and replacement windows and
doors to southern (front) and eastern (side) elevations, lowering of level of existing patio at
ground floor level on eastern side of property, repair and refurbishment of balustrade
railings at street level and replacement of existing metal staircases linking basement to
street levels. These are the same works as previously approved. In addition the applicants
also propose to create a roof level terrace with a balustrade railing and a 1.8m high
screen (which is described as an acoustic and privacy screen) on the boundary with 2
Balfour Place.

The previous scheme proposed the erection of a living wall to the rear courtyard. The
applicants have now confirmed their intention retain the existing planting and trellis in this
area..

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
Land Use

The application does not raise any land use issues.

Townscape and Design

Page 89



8.3

Item No.

The existing building of six storeys plus basement is considered to make a positive
contribution to the character and appearance of the conservation area. It dates from
1895-7 and is by Eustace Balfour and H. Thackeray Turner. It forms part of the terrace of
buildings (1-6 Balfour Place and 82 Mount Street) and is in a free Anglo-Dutch style in red
brick with stone dressings.

The roof level is partially hidden by shaped gables. Public views of the roof are limited to
long views from South Street. There are few private views of the roof from other buildings
due to the relative height of the application building to its neighbours.

An objection has been received on the grounds that the proposed roof level alterations
including the railings and the zinc clad wall, timber panels and water tanks extending
above the existing roof level are visually intrusive and would fail to preserve or enhance
the character and appearance of the conservation area.

The proposed alterations are largely as previously approved, including the zinc clad wall
to the roof level stair enclosure. The new roof level railings are traditional in terms of their
materials and detailed design and will, in any event, not be visible in the majority of views.

The top edge of the metal privacy screen will be visible in the South Street view. Butitis
not considered that this would detract from the appearance of the building or the character
and appearance of the conservation area. It is noted that 2 Balfour Place has permission
for the erection of a roof extension. If this is constructed, both the privacy screen and
railing will appear against the backdrop of the flank wall of the new mansard storey.

The attractive wrought iron railings to the basement light well are in a style which is entirely
appropriate to the age and detailing of 1 Balfour Place. It is noted that the drawings, while
annotated to show their retention, depict a different set of railings. For the avoidance of
doubt, an amending condition is proposed which requires retention of the existing
railings. The proposed simple railings to the raised garden terrace are acceptable.

The scheme is considered acceptable in the context of adopted design and townscape
policies and it is not considered that the objection could be supported.

Residential Amenity

Objections have been received from the occupants of three flats at 3-4 Balfour Place on
the grounds that use of the proposed roof terrace would result in unacceptable noise
disturbance and light pollution to neighbouring residents, particularly late at night. One
objector considers that the proposed 1.8M high screen, which is referred to as a privacy
and acoustic screen, would be unlikely to provide effective noise attenuation.

One neighbouring resident has also referred to a condition on the original permission
which prevents the use of the roof for sitting out in order to safeguard the privacy and
environment of neighbouring occupiers, referring to adopted policies ENV 13 and ENV6.

There are two bathroom windows in the flank wall to the existing roof extension at 3-4
Balfour Place. These windows overlook the roof of 2 Balfour Place towards the roof of the
application premises. Records indicate that secondary windows on the floors beneath
which look out onto a lightwell between 3-4 Balfour Place and 2 Balfour Place serve

Page 90



Item No.

6

bathrooms and a kitchen. The roof level extension to no. 3-4 Balfour Place benefits from a
small integral terrace to the rear and a similar arrangement was approved as part of the
recent permission for the roof extension to no. 2.

Although the occupiers of 2 Balfour Place objected to the previous application for
alterations to the application premises, including the roof terrace originally proposed, this
objection was conditional, depending on whether they commenced the construction of
their roof extension. They have not objected to the current application.

Noise/Light pollution

The proposed roof terrace is smaller than that which was originally proposed as part of the
approved scheme and measures approximately 26 m2. It is set towards the centre of the
roof, back from the roof edges. There is potential for the 1.8m high boundary screen to
provide some noise attenuation. However, even without an acoustic screen, given the
relationship between the proposed terrace and neighbouring residential windows it is not
considered that the use of this domestic terrace would result in significant noise
disturbance to neighbouring occupiers. It is noted that both of the neighbouring properties
in Balfour Place have, or have permission to create, external terraces, albeit smaller than
the one proposed.

In addition it is not considered that any lighting associated with the night time use of the
terrace, which is set away from neighbouring windows, or screened from bathroom
windows at 3-4 Balfour Place, would result in significant light pollution to the detriment of
neighbours’ amenities.

Consequently, it is not considered that the proposals could justifiably be recommended for
refusal on noise or light pollution grounds.

Overlooking

A condition was imposed to prevent the use of the roof of the building for sitting out. One of
the reasons for the condition was to protect neighbours’ privacy. However, this condition
was imposed, on the basis that proposals to create a roof terrace had been withdrawn.
The decision to omit the roof terrace was made by the applicant to address the objection
from the occupiers of 2 Balfour Place. There is no suggestion, in imposing this condition,
that some form of roof terrace would not be acceptable in principle.

Given the relationship of the proposed terrace with neighbouring residential windows and
in particular in view of proposals to erect a privacy screen, it is not considered that the
scheme would result in any loss of privacy to flats a 3-4 Balfour Place or to residential
windows in other neighbouring properties.

Daylight/sense of enclosure
Given the relationship of the proposed privacy screen to neighbouring windows, including
bathroom windows at 3-4 Balfour Place, it is not considered that erection of a 1.8m high

screen on the boundary between 1 and 2 Balfour Place would result in a material loss of
light or increased sense of enclosure to neighbouring windows.

Page 91



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

9.

Item No.

6

In view of the above, notwithstanding the previous restrictive condition the proposals are
considered to comply with policies ENV 13 of the UDP and S29 of Westminster's City Plan
and the objections cannot be supported.

Transportation/Parking

Transport and parking arrangements remain unchanged.

Economic Considerations

No economic considerations are applicable for a development of this size

Access

The access arrangements to the dwelling will remain unchanged.

Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Biodiversity

The original permission proposed the replacement of existing planters/trellis in the rear
courtyard with a living wall. A condition was imposed on the original permission requiring
the submission of construction details and a management and planting regimes for the
planted wall. However, the applicants now intend to retain the existing courtyard planters
and trellis. There is no objection to this amendment.

8.7 London Plan

This application raises no strategic issues.

National Policy/Guidance Considerations

The City Plan and UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are
considered to be consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

Planning Obligations

Planning obligations are not relevant in the determination of this application.

The proposal is not ClL-liable.

Environmental Impact Assessment

The scheme is of insufficient scale to require an Environmental Impact Assessment.
Other Issues

None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 92



Item No.

Application form

Letter from occupier of Flat C, 3-4 Balfour Place, dated 1 September 2017
Letter from occupier of Flat F, 3 - 4 Balfour Place, dated 11 September 2017
Letter from occupier of Flat A, 3-4 Balfour Place, dated 5 September 2017

PwnE

(Please note: All the application drawings and other relevant documents and Background Papers
are available to view on the Council’'s website)

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT THE PRESENTING
OFFICER: SARA SPURRIER BY EMAIL AT sspurrier@westminster.gov.uk

Page 93



mailto:sspurrier@westminster.gov.uk

10. KEY DRAWINGS

Item No.

000000 |

ermems 00000 | —— 1\ 7

i =
o [~ - i =1 1
* ™ - il
A ) e nocE u i—7
3 ><
.,
-~ .
M =~
: e e

|
OGE

Page 94




Item No.

6
DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 1 Balfour Place, London, W1K 2AR,
Proposal: External alterations to existing single dwellinghouse (Class C3) including roof level

alterations, new half-height plant/access enclosures, , adjustment of existing means
of escape, relocation of chimney, installation of new and replacement windows and
doors to southern (front) and eastern (side) elevations, lowering of level of existing
patio at ground floor level on eastern side of property, repair and refurbishment of
balustrade railings at street level, replacement of existing metal staircases linking
basement to street level and creation of roof terrace with railings and screen.

Reference: 17/06598/FULL

Plan Nos: 1208-800 REV A, 1208-801 REV A, 1208-802 REV A, 1208-803 REV A, 1208-806
REV A, 1208-807 REV D, 1208-850.01 REV D, 1208-850.02 REV A, 1208-850.03
REV B, 1208-851.01 REV C, 1208-851.02 REV C, 1208-851.03 REV C, 1208-852.01
REV A, 1208-852.02 REV A

Case Officer: Shaun Retzback Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 6027

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s)

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in-the interests of proper planning.

2 Except for piling, excavation and demolition work, you must carry out any building work which can
be heard at the boundary of the site only:

0 between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;
0 between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturday; and
0 not at all on Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

You must carry out piling, excavation and demdiition work only:
0 between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday; and
0 not at all on Saturdays, Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take place outside these hours unless otherwise agfeed through a Control of
Pollution Act 1974 section 61 prior consent in special circumstances (for example, to meet police
traffic restrictions, in an emergency or in the interests of-public safety). (C11AB)

Reason: . /

To protect the environment of neighbouring occupiers.. This is as set out in $S29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

Page 95



Item No.

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the choice
of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless differences are
shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to this permission.
(C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Mayfair Conservation Area. This is as set outin S25
and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both
and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R26BE)

You must not put structures such as canopies, fences, loggias, trellises or satellite or radio
antennae on the roof terrace. (C26NA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Mayfair Conservation Area. This is as setoutin S25
and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both
and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R26BE)

Notwithstanding the railings shown in drawings 1208-851.01 REV C, 1208-851.02 REV C and
1208-851.03 REV C the existing railings at street level must be retained.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Mayfair Conservation Area. This is as set out in S25
and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both
and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R26BE)

You must carry out works to the stained glass window in accordance with the details approved by
the City Council on 31 July 2017 (17/06609/ADFULL), unless otherwise approved by the City
Council.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Mayfair Conservation Area. This is as set out in S25
and S28 of Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both
and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R26BE)

The privacy screen must be erected prior to the use of the roof terrace and permanently retained

Page 96



Item No.

thereafter.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in S29 of
Westminster's City Plan (November 2016) and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R21AC)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan
(November 2016), Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning
briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service,
in order to ensure that applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which
is likely to be considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered
to the applicant at the validation stage.

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

The construction manager should keep residents and others informed about unavoidable
disturbance such as noise, dust and extended working hours, and disruption of traffic. Site
neighbours should be given clear information well in advance, preferably in writing, perhaps by
issuing regular bulletins about site progress.

Please note: the full text for informatives can be found in the Council’s Conditions,

Reasons & Policies handbook, copies of which can be found in the Committee Room
whilst the meeting is in progress, and on the Council’s website.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 Schedule of Applications
	1 The Lodge, Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7DE
	1. RECOMMENDATION
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LOCATION PLAN
	4. PHOTOGRAPHS
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	6.1 The Application Site
	6.2 Recent Relevant History
	7 THE PROPOSAL
	substation.
	7. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
	9. KEY DRAWINGS

	2 101 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ
	1. RECOMMENDATION
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LOCATION PLAN
	4. PHOTOGRAPHS
	6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	6.1 The Application Site
	101 Eastbourne Mews is a 3 storey property located in the Bayswater Conservation  Area. The site is not listed nor subject to any other designations, however the properties to the rear on Westbourne Terrace are Grade II Listed.
	6.2 Recent Relevant History
	7. THE PROPOSAL
	8. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
	10. KEY DRAWINGS

	3 103 Eastbourne Mews, London, W2 6LQ
	1. RECOMMENDATION
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LOCATION PLAN
	4. PHOTOGRAPHS
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	SOUTH EAST BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION
	6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	6.1 The Application Site
	6.2 Recent Relevant History
	7. The PROPOSAL
	Demolition of existing mews building behind retained front facade and party walls, and reconstruction of mews building providing a single dwellinghouse over ground, first and second floor, incorporating mansard roof.
	8. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
	10. KEY DRAWINGS
	11.
	DRAFT DECISION LETTER

	4 Flat 24, Garrick House, 63 - 66 St Martin's Lane, London, WC2N 4JS
	1. RECOMMENDATION
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LOCATION PLAN
	4. PHOTOGRAPHS
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	6.1 The Application Site
	6.2 Recent Relevant History
	7. THE PROPOSAL
	8. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
	10. KEY DRAWINGS

	5 1 Balfour Place, London, W1K 2AR
	1. RECOMMENDATION
	2. SUMMARY
	3. LOCATION PLAN
	4. PHOTOGRAPHS
	5. CONSULTATIONS
	6. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	6.1 The Application Site
	6.2 Recent Relevant History
	1 Balfour Place
	7. THE PROPOSAL
	8. DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
	10. KEY DRAWINGS


